



## INTERNATIONAL TABLE TENNIS FEDERATION

### 2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

**Minutes** of the Annual General Meeting of the International Table Tennis Federation held on Wednesday **15 May 2013** at 09h15 in the Seine A and B Rooms, Marriott Hotel, Paris, France.

- 1. Welcome and opening address:** the President welcomed all members to the AGM outlining the procedures to be followed with the open part of the meeting dealing with presentations, and the closed meeting which would cover the elections as well as proposals and allocation of the 2016 World Championships.
- 2. Appointment of a Chair:** the AGM noted that there had been a request that there be a neutral chair during the formal part of the AGM as the incumbent president was also a candidate for president for 2013-2017. The president proposed that the Deputy President chair the formal proceedings of the AGM.

#### 1-AGM-05-2013

The AGM unanimously approved the appointment of Mr Neil Harwood, Deputy President, to chair the meeting.

- 3. Roll call of associations present and verification of proxies:** the AGM noted that:
  - a quorum was present with 158 associations and 46 proxies.
  - there was, therefore, a total number of 204 votes.
- 4. Appointment of scrutineers:** the AGM noted the nominations received from the Continental Federations:

#### 2-AGM-05-2013

The AGM unanimously approved the appointment of the scrutineers as proposed:

Africa:	Madhu Gudka and Ahmed Gharieb
Asia:	CK Chan and VK Bawa
Europe:	Mario Papadopoulos and Camille Gonderinger
Latin America:	Sergio Blanco and Ivan Santos
North America:	Linda Hsing and Anton Kiesenhofer
Oceania:	Anthony Ho and James Morris

5. **Confirmation of the minutes of the AGM held on 27 March 2012 in Dortmund, Germany:** the minutes were confirmed and signed.
6. **Presentations:** the AGM noted the presentations made to:
- 6.1 Merit award: to Mr Richard Yule of the English Table Tennis Association.
- 6.2 Other presentations:
- The French Table Tennis Federation, represented by the President, Mr Christian Pallierne, as organiser of the 2013 World Championships. Mr Pallierne also welcomed all delegates to Paris and to the World Championships, which had attracted a very large entry.
  - The Chinese Table Tennis Association, represented by Mr Shi Zhihao, for 3 new inductees to the Hall of Fame: Ma Long, Zhang Jike and Li Xiaoxia.
  - Double Happiness, represented by Mr Lou Shihe, for sponsorship support of the 2013 WTTC.
  - Tamusu Co. Ltd., represented by Mr Shunsaku Yamada, for sponsorship support of the 2013 WTTC.
  - The Chinese Table Tennis Association, represented by Mr Shi Zhihao, for the best ITTF World Tour event in 2012.
  - The Hong Kong Table Tennis Association represented by Professor Chan Cheong Ki, for the best ITTF Junior Circuit event in 2012.
  - The Table Tennis Federation of India, represented by Mr D. R. Choudhary, for an excellent World Junior Championships organised in December 2012.
  - The Guam Table Tennis Association, represented by Mr James Ji, for an excellent World Cadet Challenge event which was organised in 2012.
  - The Guatemalan Table Tennis Association, Mr Jorge Herrera, for the outstanding organisation of the 2012 Global Junior Circuit Finals.
  - **Mr Odd Gustavsen**, outgoing chair of the Equipment Committee, for outstanding service to ITTF as a volunteer.
  - **Mr Jordi Serra** for outstanding service to the ITTF as a professional for more than 14 years.
  - **Mr Mikael Andersson** for professional service to the ITTF for 15 years.
  - Messrs **Shahrokh Shahnazi** (Iran) and **Radivoj Hudetz**, (Croatia) as new members of the President's Advisory Council (PAC).
- 2014 World Table Tennis Championships update report presentation made by the Japan Table Tennis Association and representatives of Tokyo (advanced from agenda item 16.1).
- 6.3 2016 Olympic and Paralympic Games:
- Representatives of the organising committee would attend ITTF meetings as necessary.
  - The equipment manufacturers had been appointed very early, which would allow them to prepare top class equipment for the event.
- 6.4 2016 World Table Tennis Championships bid received from the:
- 6.4.1 Table Tennis Association of Malaysia with the city of Kuala Lumpur.
- 6.4.2 Swedish Table Tennis Association with the city of Halmstad.
- 6.5 ITTF Sport Social Responsibility program by the ITTF Deputy CEO: history from 2003 to date and report on recent activities.

*Following the above awards, PPT presentations and video presentations, the open session of the AGM concluded, and the closed formal part of the AGM started after the break.*

- 7. Application for membership:** the AGM noted that Bonaire had applied for membership and had met all the requirements, noting that this would bring the number of ITTF member associations to 218.

### **3-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved the membership application from Bonaire to become the 218<sup>th</sup> member of the ITTF.

- 8. Report of the Nominations Committee:** the AGM noted that the Nominations Committee had checked all nominations received in time and confirmed that all nominations were valid.

#### Start of Election process

- *At this point of the agenda the election and voting process for the Executive Committee started concurrently with the progress of the meeting.*
- *The Director of Operations explained the voting procedures and the exact method of using the ballots.*
- *The candidates for the position of ITTF President, Mr Adham Sharara, then Mr Stefano Bosi, addressed the delegates with presentations about their programs and plans if elected President. The order of presentations was decided by draw.*
- *The voting process began, while the meeting resumed.*

- 9. Annual reports from the Executive Committee:** the AGM received the reports submitted by:

- 9.1 President: Adham Sharara (document A1)
- 9.2 Deputy President and Executive Vice President (Finance), Neil Harwood: (document A2)
- 9.3 Executive Vice-President: Khalil Al-Mohannadi (document A3)
- 9.4 Executive Vice-President: Chérif Hajem (document A4)
- 9.5 Executive Vice-President: Koji Kimura (document A5)
- 9.6 Executive Vice-President: Melecio Rivera (document A6)
- 9.7 Executive Vice-President: Petra Sörling (document A7)
- 9.8 Executive Vice-President: Thomas Weikert (document A8)

### **4-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved all the reports submitted by the Executive Committee members.

- 10. Annual reports from the Continental Federations:** the AGM received the reports submitted by the presidents of the continental federations:

- 10.1 Africa (document B1)
- 10.2 Asia (document B2)
- 10.3 Europe (document B3)
- 10.4 Latin America (document B4)
- 10.5 North America (document B5)
- 10.6 Oceania (document B6)

### **5-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved the reports submitted by the Continental Federations.

- 11. Annual reports from the CEO and Directors:** the AGM received the reports submitted by:
- 11.1 Chief Executive Officer (document C1)
  - 11.2 Deputy Chief Executive Officer (document C2)
  - 11.3 Competitions Program (document C3)
  - 11.4 Education and Training Program (document C4)
  - 11.5 Operations and Olympic Games Program (document C5)
  - 11.6 Marketing Program (document C6)

**6-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved the reports submitted by the Chief Executive Officer and the program Directors.

- 12. Annual reports from the committees:** the AGM received the reports submitted by:
- 12.1 Equipment Committee (document D1)
  - 12.2 Media Committee (document D2)
  - 12.3 Nominations Committee (document D3)
  - 12.4 Para Table Tennis Division (document D4)
  - 12.5 Rules Committee (document D5)
  - 12.6 Sports Science Committee (document D6)
  - 12.7 Technical Committee (document D7)
  - 12.8 Umpires' and Referees' Committee (document D8)
  - 12.9 Olympic and Paralympic Commission (document D9)

**7-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved all the reports submitted by the Chair of each Committee.

- 13. Finance:** the AGM received the report from the Vice President in charge of Finance. The detailed financial report with comparative historical analysis was presented by the CEO:
- 13.1 Audited Financial Statements for the years ended 31 December 2011 (document E), and the year ended 31 December 2012, which were circulated on 19 April 2012 and distributed prior to the meeting and that:
    - Partial payment from the IOC's Olympic Fund had been received in November 2012 and another amount, equivalent to about 10% of the total to be received, was expected in the first half of 2013.
    - US\$ 5 million was recognized as income in 2012 in order to raise the ITTF's reserve fund to more than US\$ 7 Million. The balance of US\$ 8.8 million had been deferred for future expenses in the new quadrennial.
    - The consolidated audited financial statements included the finances of the ITTF offices in Switzerland and Canada. However, from 2013, the ITTF office in Singapore would be also consolidated, as until the end of 2012 the Singapore office had been fully funded by TMS.
    - While the constitution indicated that the Board of Directors was responsible for the preparation of the audited financial statements, the Executive Committee performed this function on behalf of the Board of Directors as usual.
  - 13.2 Appointment of auditors: the Executive Committee recommended the appointment of Ernst and Young as auditors for the 2013 financial year.
  - 13.3 Budget 2013 to 2016: the quadrennial budget was presented.

**8-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously approved:

- 8.1 the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.
- 8.2 the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.
- 8.3 the appointment of Ernst and Young as auditors for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
- 8.4 the quadrennial budget 2013 to 2016 as proposed.

- 14. Ratification of the work done by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee:**  
the AGM considered the work done by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee since its last meeting.

**9-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM unanimously ratified the work done by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee since the last AGM.

- 15. Propositions and resolutions (document F):** the AGM considered the following propositions, which required a 2/3 majority (66.67%) of votes cast:

<b>1</b>	<p><b>Proposed by the Athletes' Commission</b></p> <p><i>To amend 1.5.3.1:</i></p> <p>1.5.3.1 The Executive Committee shall consist of the President and 8 Executive Vice-Presidents of which one shall be nominated by the President as Deputy President and another one shall be responsible for finance; the Chair of the Athletes' Commission, or his or her appointee, shall be an ex officio member of the Executive Committee <del>with no vote.</del></p> <p><i>Effective date: 2014 AGM</i></p>	<p><b>Defeated</b></p> <p>58.0% in favour</p>
<b>2</b>	<p><b>Proposed by the Executive Committee and the Rules Committee</b></p> <p><i>To amend 1.7:</i></p> <p>1.7 VACANCIES</p> <p>1.7.1 If the President resigns or is unable to continue in office he or she shall be replaced by the Deputy President. <del>and the post of Deputy President shall be assumed by the Executive Vice-President having the longest continuous period of service, who shall not be replaced.</del></p> <p>1.7.2 A vacancy arising in the post of Deputy President shall be filled by <u>the an Executive Vice-President nominated by the President.</u> <del>having the longest continuous period of service, who shall not be replaced.</del></p> <p><i>Effective date: immediately</i></p>	<p><b>Passed</b></p> <p>90.2% in favour</p>
<b>3</b>	<p><b>Proposed by the Executive Committee</b></p> <p><i>To amend clause 1.14.2 and 1.14.3:</i></p> <p>1.14.2 <del>An Executive Director</del> <u>A Chief Executive Officer (CEO)</u> shall be appointed by the Executive Committee and shall be responsible for the overall direction and supervision of the ITTF's <u>professional structure and programs</u> <del>Head Office.</del></p> <p>1.14.3 <del>ITTF staff members are to be appointed by the Executive Director</del> <u>The CEO shall appoint a staff member</u> to serve as coordinator of each committee.</p> <p><i>Effective date: immediately</i></p>	<p><b>Passed</b></p> <p>90.9% in favour</p>

The AGM considered the following propositions, which required a 3/4 (75%) majority of the votes cast:

4	<p><b>Proposed by the Executive Committee and the Rules Committee</b></p> <p>To amend Law 2.2.4:</p> <p>2.2.4 The bottom of the net, along its whole length, shall be as close as possible to the playing surface and the ends of the net shall be <del>as close as possible</del> <u>attached</u> to the supporting posts <u>from top to bottom</u>.</p>	<p><b>Passed</b></p> <p>87.22% in favour</p>
5	<p><b>Proposed by the Rules Committee</b></p> <p>To delete Law 2.5.14 and to modify related paragraphs 2.6.3, 2.7.1, 2.9.1.1 and 3.3.2.5.2 (the latter see under Board of Directors) accordingly:</p> <p><del>2.5.14 The ball shall be regarded as passing over or around the net assembly if it passes anywhere other than between the net and the net post or between the net and the playing surface.</del></p> <p>2.6.3 As the ball is falling, the server shall strike it so that it touches first his or her court and then <del>after passing over or around the net assembly,</del> touches directly the receiver's court; in doubles, the ball shall touch successively the right half court of server and receiver.</p> <p>2.7.1 The ball, having been served or returned, shall be struck so that it <del>passes over or around the net assembly</del> and touches the opponent's court, either directly or after touching the net assembly.</p> <p>2.9.1.1 if in service the ball, in <del>passing over or around the net assembly,</del> touches it, before <u>touching the receiver's court,</u> touches the <u>net assembly</u>, provided the service is otherwise correct or the ball is obstructed by the receiver or his or her partner.</p>	<p><b>Deferred</b></p>
6	<p><b>Proposed by the PTT Division</b></p> <p>To modify 2.8.3:</p> <p>2.8.3 <u>In doubles, when at least one player of a pair is in a wheelchair due to a physical disability,</u> the server shall first make a service, the receiver shall then make a return, but thereafter either player of that pair may make returns. However no part of a player's wheelchair <u>nor a foot of a standing player of this pair</u> shall protrude beyond the imaginary extension of the centre line of the table. If it does, the umpire shall award the point to the opposing pair.</p>	<p><b>Passed</b></p> <p>86.4% in favour</p>

The AGM considered the following Resolution, which required a simple majority of the votes cast:

A	<p><b>Proposed by the French Table Tennis Federation</b></p> <p>Following the recommendation 41 of the Olympic and Sport Movement Congress, the ITTF should adopt the Basic Universal Principles of Good Governance as proposed by the IOC. Specifically, the ITTF should develop a draft, to be discussed and adopted at the 2014 General Assembly, containing at least:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. A clear statement of the ITTF vision, mission and a four years strategy plan.</li> <li>2. The amendment to the ITTF Constitution to clearly define its structure, regulations and the democratic process according to the basic universal principles of good governance. Special consideration to be given to the establishment of transparent and enhanced dispute resolution mechanisms</li> </ol>	<p><b>Passed</b></p> <p>80.8%</p>
---	--	-----------------------------------

	<p>and adequate procedures to avoid conflicts of interests.</p> <p>3. Good governance implies proper financial monitoring. The ITTF should establish an independent Financial Committee, a system of internal audit control and a clear and adequate risk management process should be put in place.</p> <p><i>Below are the recommendations 41, 42 and 43 adopted by the IOC Congress in Copenhagen on 5 October 2009.</i></p> <p>41 The legitimacy and autonomy of the Olympic Movement depends on upholding the highest standards of ethical behavior and good governance. All members of the Olympic Movement should adopt, as their minimum standard, the Basic Universal Principles of Good Governance of the Olympic Movement, as proposed by the IOC. All members of the Olympic Movement must always demonstrate integrity, accountability and transparency, as well as the highest level of management skills; and they must ensure that at all times their legal status is both fully consistent with their activities and responsibilities and wholly compliant with the laws of the land (applicable laws).</p> <p>42 All members of the Olympic Movement should keep annual accounts in accordance with acknowledged standards of accounting; ensure they have an independent audit or verification of their accounts; adopt rules, norms and practices under which those who cannot comply with good governance may lose financial support or be sanctioned; adopt and implement a code of ethics based on the principles and rules of the IOC Code of Ethics; and always seek to protect and promote the interest of the athletes they represent.</p> <p>43 Transparent and enhanced dispute resolution mechanisms must be in place in all sports organizations at all levels. All disputes which cannot be settled amicably or through local arbitration or mediation should be submitted to the Court of Arbitration of Sport (CAS). While fully respecting the sovereignty and independence of the CAS, the constituents of the Olympic Movement may submit to the CAS proposals or contributions so that litigation may be simplified, accelerated, and legal costs reduced.</p>	
--	--	--

**16. Future world championships:** the AGM noted the:

- 16.1 Update on the 2014 World Championships in Tokyo
- 16.2 Presentations for candidates to host of the 2016 ITTF World Team Championships and the recommendation of the Executive Committee, based on a joint proposal from the Swedish TTA and the Malaysian TTA, to award the 2016 WTTC to Malaysia and the 2018 WTTC to Sweden.

**10-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM resolved to allocate:

- 10.1 The 2016 World Team Championships to Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and
- 10.2 The 2018 World Team Championships to Halmstad, Sweden.

**17. Elections:**

- 17.1 Committees: the Nominations Committee submitted the complete list of nominated committee members, noting a change in the Media Committee, with Chandra Madhosingh as a special advisor and Michel de Chadaravian as a full member.
- 17.2 Board of Directors: the number of nominations equalled the number of places available.

- 17.3 President: two candidates, Mr Adham Sharara and Mr Stefano Bosi were part of the voting process, and presentations by each were made before the voting commenced.
- 17.4 Executive Vice-Presidents: there were 12 candidates for 8 positions, and no presentations were made prior to the voting process.

### **11-AGM-05-2013**

The AGM resolved to approve:

- 11.1 The recommendations of the Nominations Committee in relation to committee membership for 2013 to 2015 (see attached).
- 11.2 The membership as proposed for the Board of Directors (see attached).

The AGM received the following voting results for the election of the President:

Total number of votes possible		204
Total number of votes cast		204
Total number of votes spoilt		2
Total number of valid votes		202
Stefano Bosi	(ITA)	53 votes
Adham Sharara	(CAN)	149 votes

The Chairperson declared **Adham Sharara duly elected as President for the period 2013-2017.**

The AGM received the following voting results for the election of the Vice-Presidents:

Total number of votes possible		204
Total number of votes cast		204
Total number of votes spoilt		5
Total number of valid votes		199
Khalil Al Mohannadi	(QAT)	180 votes
Alaor Azevedo	(BRA)	69 votes
Claude Bergeret	(FRA)	70 votes
Veli Ozan Cakir	(TUR)	71 votes
Patrick Gillmann	(NCL)	137 votes
Cherif Hajem	(TUN)	170 votes
Masahiro Maehara	(JPN)	189 votes
Miguel Ángel Machado	(ESP)	56 votes
Melecio Eduardo Rivera	(ESA)	131 votes
Shi Zhihao	(CHN)	190 votes
Petra Sörling	(SWE)	165 votes
Thomas Weikert	(GER)	164 votes

The Chairperson declared **Khalil Al Mohannadi, Patrick Gillmann, Cherif Hajem, Masahiro Maehara, Melecio Rivera, Shi Zhihao, Petra Sörling and Thomas Weikert duly elected as members of the Executive Committee for the period 2013-2017.**

**12 Revisions to the Constitution:** the AGM noted that:



- 12.1 All members were again invited to submit input, including those who had already submitted proposals.
- 12.2 Affiliation of Continental Federations: 4 continental federations had signed the Continental Affiliation agreement and hopefully the remaining continental federations would do so in the near future.

**13 Next AGM:** the AGM noted that its next meeting would be held in Tokyo in May 2014.

**14 Any other business:** the AGM noted that:

- 14.1 There were several problems experienced by participating associations in obtaining visas for the World Championships.
- 14.2 Previous world champions should be recognised as such at world championships once they had retired.

**15 Adjournment:** in closing the AGM, the President thanked everyone who had participated, appealed for the unity of the ITTF for the benefit of table tennis, and hoped that the ITTF family would unite in promoting table tennis. There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 17h06.

---

Neil Harwood  
Meeting Chair

---

Date

## ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Function	Name	Present
Executive Committee (no vote)	Adham Sharara	
	Neil Harwood	
	Koji Kimura	
	Chérif Hajem	
	Thomas Weikert	
	Khalil Al-Mohannadi	
	Melecio Rivera	
	Petra Sörling	
Continental Presidents (no vote except for those with proxy)	Khaled El-Salhy	Proxy for Mozambique
	Cai Zhenhua	Apologies
	Stefano Bosi	
	Oswaldo Borges	
	Michael Cavanaugh	
	Patrick Gillmann	Proxy for Marianas
Board of Directors (no vote except for those with proxy)	Berthe A. Bakhary	Proxy for Niger
	Ebo Barthels	
	Ganief Fataar	Apologies
	Hao Thyn Voon	
	Henry Djombo	Proxy for Central Africa
	Olabanji Oladapo	Proxy for Zimbabwe
	Thomas Kiggundu	Proxy for Botswana
	Khalid Al Mawlawi	
	Michel de Chadarevian	
	Mohammad Sibtain	
	Park Do Cheon	
	Shahrokh Shahnazi	
	Thana Chaiprasit	
	Tony Yue	
	Alexander Murdoch	
	Cristinel Romanescu	
	Dorte Kronsell	Proxy for Greenland
	Eberhard Schöler	
	Gérard Velten	
	Oktay Cimen	
	Radivoj Hudetz	
	Walter Rönmark	
	Zdenko Kriz	
Alaor G. P. Azevedo	Proxy for Bolivia	
Leonel Aguilar	Proxy for Ecuador	

	Javier A. Gomez Peralta	
	Juan Vila	
	Sergio Arturo Blanco	
	Bruce Burton	Proxy for Gabon
	Anthony Ho	Proxy for American Samoa
	Graeme Ireland	Proxy for Norfolk Island
	James Morris	Proxy for Tokelau

Function	Name	No vote
Athletes' Commission	Vladimir Samsonov	Apologies
Equipment Committee	Odd Gustavsen	
Media Committee	Arne Madsen	
Nominations Committee	Chan Foong Keong	
Para TT Division	Øivind Eriksen	
Rules Committee	Rudolf Sporrer	
Sport Science Committee	Jean-François Kahn	
URC	Albert Rooijmans	
Veterans' Committee	Reto Bazzi	
Women's Working Group	Hajera Kajee	
Honorary President	Xu Yinsheng	Apologies
Personal Honorary Member	Helios Farrell	
President's Advisory Council	André Damman	
	Ranga Ramanujan	Apologies
	George Segun	
	Nils Bergstrom	Apologies
	Henry Yue	Apologies
	Rufford Harrison	Apologies
	Hans Giesecke	
	Han Sang Kook	Apologies
	Colin Clemett	
	Jane Pinto	

### Associations

AFGHANISTAN	FORUGH Tabish	
ALBANIA	BINOSHAJ Tonin	
ALGERIA	ZITOUNI Kamel	
ANGOLA	CRUZ Abilio	
ANGUILLA	RICHARDSON Rollins	
ANTIGUA & BARBUDA	BELLOT Charles	
	HERBERT Irmaine	
ARGENTINA	TENCA Nestor	Proxy for Cayman Islands
ARMENIA	SARGSYAN Feliks	

AUSTRALIA	GOODIER Will	Proxy for Papua New Guinea
	MALES Phil	
AUSTRIA	FORSTHUBER Gottfried	
AZERBAIJAN	ZUDOVA Aleksandr	
	MALIK YEGANOV Rafail	
BAHRAIN	ALMADEH Ali	
BANGLADESH	RAHMAN Zohera	
BARBADOS	BROWNE Trevor	
	FELIX Marguerita	
BELARUS	AMARIN Vladimir	
	IVANENKA Piotr	
BELGIUM	DELHOU Roland	
	DENYS Jacques	
BELIZE	ESNARD Carlos	
BENIN	GUEZO Fortuné Luc Olivier	
BOSNIA & HERZEGOVINA	IVANEK Vladimir	
BRAZIL	VINHAS Ivam	
BULGARIA	KITOV Stefan	
BURKINA FASO	NANEMA Denis	Proxy for Congo Democratic
BURUNDI	NDIKUMANA Adolphe	
CAMBODIA	RAT Sokhorn	
CAMEROON	BAGUEKA ASSOBO Alfred	
CANADA	JACKSON David	Proxy for Marshall Islands
	KIESENHOFER Anton	
CHILE	REIMBERG Henry	
CHINA	LIU Yi	
	SHI Zhihao	
CHINESE TAIPEI	YANG Cheng-Hsiung	
	HUNG Tsung-Min	
COLOMBIA	URIBE Pedro	
	PADILLA Jairo	
COMOROS	ABOUD SAID Hilmy	
CONGO BRAZZAVILLE	OKOUNA O. Jean Marie	
COOK ISLANDS	IORANGI Tearoa	Proxy for Tuvalu
COSTA RICA	ZAMORA Alexander	
COTE D'IVOIRE	DJEGNA Nestor Vagba	Proxy for Guinea
	KOUADJO Yao Thiery	
CROATIA	MUNIVRANA Ivo Goran	
CURACAO	MATHILDA Franklin	
CYPRUS	GEORGIUO Andreas	
	PAPADOPOULOS Marios	

CZECH REPUBLIC	ENDAL Nikolas	
	SPACEK Zbynek	
DENMARK	BECKMANN Aksel	
	HUMMELUHR Steen	
DJIBOUTI	FARAH Hassan Farah	
	ISMAIL Ali Ismail	
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC	SANTOS Juan	
EGYPT	MESHREF Alaaledin	Proxy for Tanzania
	HAMED Heba	
EL SALVADOR	SALAZAR Luis	Proxy for Panama
ENGLAND	BRADLEY Peter	
	MURDOCH Valerie	
ESTONIA	LUBI Sirje	
	MÄNNIK Marko	
ETHIOPIA	KEBEDEW Habtu	
FAROE ISLANDS	BERNER Jan	
FIJI	RATU Eroni Duncan	Proxy for Tonga
FINLAND	GREFBERG Sonja	
	MANNI Jouko	
France	PALIERNE Christian	
	RIGAUD Christian	
GERMANY	AHLERT Heike	
	VATHEUER Matthias	
GHANA	QUARCOO Rexford	
GUAM	JI James	Proxy for Palau
	JI Young Hee	
GUATEMALA	HERRERA Jorge	
	HERNANDEZ Manuel	
GUERNSEY	O'KEEFE Rebecca	
GUYANA	FRASER Arron	
HAITI	FRANTZ Jacques	
HONDURAS	MUNOZ Guillermo	
HONG KONG	CHAN Cheong Ki	
	CHIU Echo	
HUNGARY	NATRAN Roland	
ICELAND	SVERRISSON Sigurdur V.	
INDIA	CHOUDHARY Dhanraj	
	BAWA Vijay Kumar	
INDONESIA	LAYARDI Peter	
IRAN	ZAREPOUR A. Mohammad	
IRAQ	AL-JAAB A. Waheed Hassan	

	HARDA Baram	
IRELAND	STRONG Kenneth	
ISLE OF MAN	MACFARLANE Malcolm	
ISRAEL	KRAUS Oscar	
ITALY	SCIANNIMANICO Francesco	Proxy for Greece
	MARINO Giuseppe	
JAMAICA	LOTHIAN Godfrey	
	MCMILLAN Ian	
JAPAN	MAEHARA Masahiro	
	YOKOTA Sachiko	
JERSEY	GASCOYNE Craig	
	LE MAISTRE Keith	
KAZAKHSTAN	DRUZHKOVA Yelena	
	BEISALIYEV Malik	
KENYA	MUDIBO Andrew	Proxy for Lesotho
	GUDKA Madhu	
KOREA	LEE Yousung	
	SEO Euncheol	
KOREA DPR	JU Jong Chol	
	KO Chol Ho	
KOSOVO	FAZLIJA Aferdita	
	CITAKU Nehat	
KUWAIT	AL-MATOUQ Mohammad	Proxy for Palestine
KYRGYZSTAN	BALYAN Samson	
	TESHAEV Shukhratulla	
LAOS	VONGSA Somchay	
	SANTIKHONGAKHA Orlathay	
LATVIA	PURINSH Egils	
LEBANON	HAJJ-NICOLAS Selim	Proxy for Jordan
	NOUR EDDINE Wael	
LIBERIA	KORVAH Amos	
LIBYA	NAAS Mahmoud	Proxy for Chad
	ABOUJANAH Eltahir	
LIESTENSTEIN	NEUBAUER Herbert	
LITHUANIA	BALAIŠA Rimgaudas	
LUXEMBOURG	HARTMANN André	
	GONDERINGER Camille	
MACAO	O I Chau	
MACEDONIA	STANOJKOVSKI Jovanche	
MADAGASCAR	AMBINITSOARIVELO Jean Herley	
MALAYSIA	CHEE Christina	Proxy for Myanmar

MALDIVES	LATHEEF Ahmed	
MALTA	DAWSON Paul	
MAURITIUS	DESCANN Ganeshan	
MEXICO	BLANCO Sergio Arturo	Proxy for Dominica
	RUELAS VARGAS Elisabeth	
MOLDOVA	SARIC Oleg	
MONACO	MICHELIS Christian	Proxy for Gibraltar
	LOULERGUE Marc	
MONGOLIA	CHIMEDDORJ Amarsanaa	
	TOGTOKHBAYAR Bat-erdene	
MONTENEGRO	ZONJIC Dijana	
	KALUDJEROVIC Branislav	
MOROCCO	EL HAJJI Monqid	Proxy for Mauritania
NAMIBIA	FLEIDL Heiko	
	VASIN Yury	
NAURU	MOSES Reagan	Proxy for Micronesia
NETHERLANDS	SIALINO Achim	
	VAN HAAREN Hans	
NEW CALEDONIA	GAUTHIER Cathy	Proxy for Wallis
NEW ZEALAND	KYLE Paul	Proxy for Niue
NICARAGUA	MOLINA Jose	
	PEREZ Pedro Pablo	
NIGERIA	OGUNTADE Segun Folorunso	Proxy for Malawi
NORWAY	NORDBY Svenn-Erik	
PAKISTAN	KHALID MAHMOOD Chaudhry	
PARAGUAY	REAL Benjamin	
PERU	GOMEZ PERALTA Javier	
PHILIPPINES	ANDANAR Annie	
	ANDANAR Wencelito	
POLAND	WALDOWSKI Wojciech	
PORTUGAL	MOURA Pedro	
	COSTA Daniela	
PUERTO RICO	CASTALDO Leticia	Proxy for St Kitts and Nevis
	SANTOS Ivan	
QATAR	SALEH Mohd Abdulla	
	AL-MUFTAH Ali Sultan	
ROMANIA	ROMANESCU Beatrice	
RUSSIA	TARASOV Vladimir	
	MARKOV Roman	
RWANDA	SEMIGABO Eugene	
SAN MARINO	PIVA Stefano	
	UNYI Bernadett	

SAUDI ARABIA	ALHOSSAINI Mohamad	
	ALRUWASHID Mohammed	
ST LUCIA	MATTHEWS Teddy	Proxy for British Virgin Islands
SCOTLAND	MCCALLUM Philip	
	MCGOWAN Stewart	
SENEGAL	LO Balla	Proxy for Gambia
SERBIA	KALINIC Zoran	
	MATKOVIC Aleksandar	
SEYCHELLES	REMIE Francis	
SINGAPORE	WONG Hui Leng	
	LEE Bee Wah	
SLOVAKIA	HAMRAN Anton	
SLOVENIA	HRIBAR Marjan	
SOMALIA	OMAR Mire	
SOUTH AFRICA	BUCKTON Brian	Proxy for Swaziland
SPAIN	MACHADO Miguel Angel	Proxy for Andorra
SRI LANKA	RAJAPAKSA Jagath	
	WEWELWALA HEWAGE Tamara	
SUDAN	ELSALLAWI Abdelrahman	
SURINAME	HOOGHART Desire	
SWEDEN	GUSTAFSSON David	
SWITZERLAND	SILBERSCHMIDT Georg	
	STANCU Jean-Pascal	
SYRIA	KALLAS Mamoun	
TAHITI	TEINAORE Louis Teril	Proxy for Kiribati
TAJIKISTAN	SAIDOV Zaid	
THAILAND	RUENGVES Nattavuth	Proxy for Brunei
TOGO	LAWSON GAIZER Boe	
	LOCOH Kodjo Afanou	
TRINIDAD & TOBAGO	LALMAN-ST LOUIS Jeromaine	
TUNISIA	GUERFEL Lotfi	
TURKEY	CIMEN Oktay	
	CAKIR Veli Ozan	
TURKMENISTAN	AHMEDOV Rustam	
UGANDA	GALABUZI Dennis Ssozi	
UKRAINE	ULLANCHYCH Mykola	
	LANDYK Valentyn	
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES	IBRAHIM Fathiya	
	ALHAJERI Dawoud	
URUGUAY	MIGLIETTI Roberto	



USA	HSING Linda	Proxy for Bermuda
UZBEKISTAN	TURSUNOV Fakhritdin	
VANUATU	LULU Ham	Proxy for Solomon Islands
VENEZUELA	MARCANO Pedro	Proxy for St Maarten
WALES	URBAN Gergley	
YEMEN	AL-SUNAINI Esam Ali	
	ZABARAH Motahar Ahmed	
ZAMBIA	CHENDA Charles	

Staff	Judit Farago
	Glenn Tepper
	Alison Burchell
	Etsuko Enami
	Vicky Eleftheriade
	Habiba Besic
	Polona C. Susin
	Raul Calin
	Matt Pound
	Kimberly Koh
	Michael Brown
	Ramon Ortega Montes
	Ahmed Dawlatly
	Papic Dejan
	Zita Pidl
	Steve Dainton
Mikael Andersson	
Lilamani de Soysa	
Afshin Badiie	
Remy Gros	

Observers	<b>Open session only</b>
Japan 2014	Tonouchi Shogo
	Oishi Satoru
	Shimadate Hideki
Sweden 2016 Bid Team	Johan F Lundberg
	Jörgen Persson
	Thomas Buza
	Lovisa Brorson
	Terje Johansson
	Asa Carlsson
	Fredrik Geijer
	Anna-Carin Ahlquist

Malaysia 2016 Bid Team	Abdul Rahim Haron
	Mokhtar Maizatuliza
	James White
	Azura Zainol Abidin
	Tony Nagamaiah
	Ibrahim Mohd Yusof
Rio 2016	Rodrigo Garcia
	Edimilson Pinheiro
	Nico Verspeelt
	Jordi Serra
	Allanazarov Agamurat
	Federico Lineros
	Felix Pinto
	Katja Brand
	Claude Bergeret
	Alan Ransome
	Richard Yule
	Paul Schiltz
	Roman Plese